

Subject: Approval of 2020 Public Health General Program Audit

Report to: Public Health and Social Services Committee

Report date: Tuesday, September 14, 2021

Recommendations

- 1. That the draft audited schedule of revenue and expenses and the annual reconciliation return for the Public Health General Programs for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Appendix 1 and 2 to Report PHD 9-2021), **BE APPROVED**;
- 2. That staff **BE DIRECTED** to co-ordinate with the auditor to finalize the statements as presented; and
- 3. That Report PHD 9-2021 **BE FORWARDED** to the Region's Audit Committee for information.

Key Facts

- The purpose of this report is to obtain approval of the audited schedule of revenue and expenses and the annual reconciliation return in accordance with the provincial requirements.
- The Ministry submission deadline for the program is June 30th but an extension has been granted given the current pandemic situation.
- As per the Financial Reporting and Forecasting Policy (C-F-020), other financial statements or schedules performed for Ministry funding purposes, will be recommended for approval to Council by the standing Committee with oversight of the program. Upon approval by Council, the department Commissioner, or delegated authority, and the Treasurer will be authorized to sign the auditor's representation letter to obtain the auditor's signed report. The approved statements will then be forwarded to Audit Committee for information.

Financial Considerations

The schedule of revenue and expenses ("financial schedule") and annual reconciliation return have been prepared in compliance with legislation and in accordance with the requirements and policies stipulated by the Ministry of Health, specifically for the purpose of meeting the requirements as outlined in the service agreement with the funding Ministry.

Draft copies of the financial schedule and annual reconciliation return for the period ended December 31, 2020, are attached as Appendix 1 and 2 to Report PHD 9-2021.

The financial schedule for the Public Health General Programs is a Ministry requirement as noted in the audit report for the program as follows:

"The accompanying schedule of the Program for the year ended December 31, 2020, is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting provisions in the Public Health Funding and Accountability Agreement between Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario as represented by the Ministry of Health (formerly the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care) (the "Ministry") and the Board of Health for the Niagara Region Public Health Department most recently amended effective January 1, 2020 (the "Guidelines")."

"The schedule is prepared to assist the Region in complying with the financial reporting provisions of the Guidelines. As a result, the schedule may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter."

Funding from the Ministry of Health for General Programs is no longer received and settled on a program-by-program basis. The following report was prepared in alignment with the settlement of funds provided through the Transfer Payment Agreement. The 2020 report will appear less detailed than prior years.

Analysis

The program audit was completed by the Region's external auditors, Deloitte. The auditors have indicated that, based on their review, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that this information is not, in all material respects, in accordance with the Ministry requirements identified.

The recommendation for approval of audited schedules performed for Ministry funding purposes rests with the Committee to which the department responsible for the funding reports. Upon approval by the Committee, these schedules are referred to Audit Committee for information. Then the department's Commissioner and Treasurer will be authorized to sign the auditor's representation letter to obtain the auditor's signed report.

The grant receivable from the Province of Ontario is subject to audit verification by the Ontario Ministry of Health. Grants receivable are non-interest bearing and are normally

received in the subsequent year. In the current year, there is a grant receivable of \$1,367,765.

The financial schedule is subject to minor wording changes once the schedule is finalized.

Alternatives Reviewed

The audited financial schedule and annual reconciliation return are a Ministry requirement and therefore no alternatives are available.

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities

Providing formal financial reporting to Council and the public supports the Council Strategic Priority of Sustainable and Engaging Government.

Other Pertinent Reports

None

Prepared by:

Beth Brens, CPA, CA Acting Associate Director, Reporting & Analysis Corporate Services Recommended by:

M. Mustafa Hirji, MD MPH FRCPC Medical Officer of Health & Commissioner (Acting) Public Health and Emergency Services

Submitted by:

Ron Tripp, P.Eng.
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

This report was prepared in consultation with Amanda Fyfe, Program Financial Specialist.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Public Health General Programs – Schedule of Revenue and Expenses

Appendix 2 Public Health General Program – Annual Reconciliation Return

PHD 9-2021 September 14, 2021 Appendix 1

Schedule of revenue, expenses and grant returnable

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs

December 31, 2020



The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs December 31, 2020

Table of contents

ndependent Auditor's Report	1-2
Schedule of revenue, expenses and grant receivable/repayable	3-4
Notes to the schedule	5_6





PHD 9-2021 September 14, 2021

> 5500 Appendix Road Suite 700 Burlington ON L7L 6W6 Canada

Tel: 905-315-6770 Fax: 905-315-6700 www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council of the Regional Municipality of Niagara and the Ontario Ministry of Health

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying schedule of revenue, expenses and grant returnable of the Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department – General Programs (the "Program" or "Region") for the year ended December 31, 2020 and notes to the schedule (collectively referred to as the "schedule").

In our opinion, the accompanying schedule of the Program for the year ended December 31, 2020, is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting provisions in the Public Health Funding and Accountability Agreement between Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario as represented by the Ministry of Health (formerly the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care) (the "Ministry") and the Board of Health for the Niagara Region Public Health Department most recently amended effective January 1, 2020 (the "Guidelines").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards ("Canadian GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule* section of our report. We are independent of the Region in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the schedule in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to the fact that the schedule has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines. The schedule is prepared to assist the Region in complying with the financial reporting provisions of the Guidelines. As a result, the schedule may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Schedule

Management is responsible for the preparation of the schedule in accordance with the Guidelines, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Region's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the schedule as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this schedule.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the schedule, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Region's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants Licensed Public Accountants July 22, 2021

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Grant Returnable
Year ended December 31, 2020

								Add back:	
								Eligible expenses (revenues) in	
							Add back:	excess of	
		Revenue (Budget)	Revenue (Actual) Exp	pense (Budget) E	xpense (Actual)	Surplus (deficit) Actual	Ineligible expenses	Ministry funding (deficit)	Grant Returnable (receivable)
Province of Ontario									
Trovince or entance	Mandatory Programs MOHLTC (70% Cost-shared)	23,576,200	23,576,200	36,044,651	35,627,359	(12,051,159)	1,771,486	10,279,673	
	Physician Services Agreement [Medical Officer of Health] (70%)	351,000	199,401	351,000	296,414	(97,013)		, ,	(97,013)
	Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program [OSDCP] (100%)	2,137,000	2,070,108	2,137,000	1,986,358	83,750			83,750
		26,064,200	25,845,709	38,532,651	37,910,131	(12,064,422)	1,771,486	10,279,673	(13,263)
One-time									
	Mitigation (100%)	455,500	455,500	455,500	455,500				
	Mandatory Programs: Public Health Inspector Practicum Program (100%) Covid-19: Extraordinary Costs (100%)	10,000		10,000	1,682,094	(4 692 004)			(1,682,094)
	Covid-19: Extraordinary Costs (100%) Covid-19: Public Health Case and Contact Management Solution (100%)	3,631,000 31,700		3,631,000 31,700	1,002,094	(1,682,094)			(1,002,094)
	Covid-19: School-Focused Nurses Initiative (100%)	1,340,000	837,500	1,340,000	678,059	159,441			159,441
	MOH/AMOH Compensation Initiative (100%)	57,300	30,,300	57,300	23,359	(23,359)			(23,359)
	Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program [OSDCP] Dental Clinic Upgrades - Centre de sante	122,000		122,000	20,000	(==,===,			(==,===,
	Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program [OSDCP] Dental Clinic Upgrades _ Fort Erie (100%)	75,300		75,300	35,969	(35,969)			(35,969)
	Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program [OSDCP] Dental Clinic Upgrades - Niagara Falls Community								
	Health Centre (100%)	134,500		134,500		-			
	Temporary Pandemic Pay Initiative (100%)	267,700	267,700	267,700	31,002	236,698			236,698
	-	6,125,000	1,560,700	6,125,000	2,905,983	(1,345,283)	-		(1,345,283)
	Universal Influenza (UIPP)				1.894	(1,894)		435	(1,459)
	Meningococcal C	40,000	4,285		5,944	(1,659)		400	(1,459)
	Human Papillomavirus	55.000	1,700		8.905	(7,205)		706	(6,499)
	Turnatt aprilomavitus	00,000	,,,,,,		0,500	(1,200)		700	(0,400)
				-	-		-	-	
Total before Region gran	nt and other income	32,284,200	27,412,394	44,657,651	40,832,856	(13,420,463)	1,771,486	10,281,214	(1,367,764)
Region grant and other in									
	The Regional Municipality of Niagara grant	12,256,951 125.500	11,806,589	0.000	-	11,806,589			
Total Region and other in	Other income	125,500	246,110 12.052.698	9,000 9.000		246,110 12.052.698			
Total Neglori and other if	isonic	12,302,431	12,032,030	3,000	-	12,002,090			
Total		\$ 44,666,651 \$	39,465,092 \$	44,666,651 \$	40,832,856	\$ (1,367,765)			

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs
Schedule of revenue, expenses and grant receivable/repayable year ended December 31, 2019

	Revenue Budget	Revenue Actual	Expense Budget	Expense Actual	Surplus (deficit) Actual	Add back: ineligible expenses	Add back: eligible expenses (revenues) in excess of Ministry funding (deficit)	Grant repayable (receivable)
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Province of Ontario								
Mandatory Programs MOHLTC (75%)	20,473,200	20,473,200	31,796,788	31,472,549	(10,999,349)	1,320,278	9,679,071	-
Chief Nursing Officer Support	121,500	121,500	121,500	121,500	-	, , , <u>-</u>	· · ·	-
Infection Control Program	90,100	90,100	90,100	90,100	-	-	_	-
Social Determinants of Health Nurses	180,500	180,500	180,500	180,500	<u>-</u>	-	-	-
Food Safety - Farm to Fork	78,400	78,400	78,400	78,400		-	_	-
Harm Reduction Program	250,000	250,000	250,000	250,000		-	_	-
Healthy Smiles Ontario (HSO)	1,250,900	1,250,900	1,250,900	1,250,900		-	_	-
Infectious Disease Control	611,200	611,200	611,200	611,200	-	-	_	-
Needle Exchange Program Initiative	192,000	192,000	192,000	192,000	-	-	_	-
Physician Services Agreement (Medical Officer of Health)	340,000	173,323	340,000	201,255	(27,932)	-	_	(27,932)
Safe Water Program	35,300	35,300	35,300	35,300	-	-	_	-
Smoke Free Ontario Strategy Program	668,600	668,600	673,599	669,190	(590)	-	590	-
Youth Tobacco Use Prevention	80,000	80,000	80,000	80,000	` -	-	_	-
Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program (OSDCP)	1,602,750	805,010	1,602,750	993,050	(188,040)	-	_	(188,040)
One-time				•	, , ,			, , ,
Business Intelligence Framework (2018-19)		159,153	-	159,153	_	-	_	-
New Purpose Built Vaccine Refrigerators (2019-20)	85,000	63,750	-	81,972	(18,222)	-	-	(18,222)
Needle Exchange Program Initiative One time (2019-20)	90,000	67,500	-	54,127	13,373	-	(13,373)	-
OSDCP Dental Clinic Upgrades (2019-20 Capital Funding)	331,800	-	-	-	· -	-	•	-
Universal Influenza (UIPP)		-	-	56,416	(56,416)	-	44,166	(12,250)
Meningococcal C	-		-	102,158	(102,158)	-	62,743	(39,415)
Human Papillomavirus	-	-	-	153,041	(153,041)	-	94,102	(58,939)
·	26,481,250	25,300,436	37,303,037	36,832,811	(11,532,375)	1,320,278	9,867,299	(344,798)
Desire week and all arrives are								
Region grant and other income	40 444 770	40.770.044			40.770.044			
The Regional Municipality of Niagara levy Other income	10,411,773	10,776,311	-	-	10,776,311			
Other income	410,014 10,821,787	411,266	-	-	411,266			
	10,021,767	11,187,577	-	-	11,187,577			
Total	37,303,037	36,488,013	37,303,037	36,832,811	(344,798)			

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs Notes to the schedule December 31, 2020

1. Significant accounting policies

The schedule has been prepared for the Ontario Ministry of Health in accordance with the Public Health Accountability Agreement effective January 1, 2020 between the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long Term Care and the Regional Municipality of Niagara (the "guidelines"). The agreement requires the schedule to be prepared in a manner consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Management of the Regional Municipality of Niagara has interpreted GAAP to be recognition and measurement principles in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, except that it does not provide for employee future benefits and does not capitalize and amortize tangible capital assets. Management has further interpreted that GAAP does not include the presentation principles and note disclosure required by GAAP for a complete set of financial statements. The financial results for the Community Mental Health Program is not included in the schedule of revenue, expenses and grant receivable/repayable for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

- (i) Revenues are reported on the cash basis of accounting.
- (ii) Expenses are recorded if they are eligible for the program and incurred in the period, except for employee future benefits (iv).
- (iii) Tangible capital assets acquired are reported as an expenses and amortization is not recorded.
- (iv) Employee future benefits are provided which will require funding in future periods. These benefits included vacation pay, sick leave, benefits under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board ("WSIB") Act, and life insurance, extended health and dental benefits for early retirees. These benefits are recorded on a cash basis.
- (v) Since precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of a periodic schedule involves the use of estimates and approximations. These have been made using careful judgments.
- (vi) Total expenses are reported on the schedule of revenue, expenses and grant receivable/repayable in order to understand the full cost of the program. Ineligible expenses as per the funding agreement have been removed for the purpose of determining the grant repayable/receivable.

2. Grant receivable (Repayable)

The grant receivable from the Province of Ontario is subject to audit verification by the Ontario Ministry of Health. The grants receivable are non-interest bearing and are normally received in the subsequent year. In the current year, there is a grant receivable of \$1.37M.

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
Grant receivable, beginning of year	344,798	95,377
Amounts recovered during the year	(349,360)	(164,216)
Amounts repaid during the year	-	136,223
Adjustment to prior year balances*	4,562	(67,382)
Grant receivable (repayable)	1,367,765	344,796
Net grant receivable (repayable), end of year	1,367,765	344,798

^{*} Represents adjustments made to correct differences between amounts originally recorded and amounts settled related to repayable and receivable balances for prior years.

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs Notes to the schedule December 31, 2020

3. Budget data

The budget data presented in the schedule is based on the budget data submitted to the Ontario Ministry of Health.



Annual Reconciliation Report

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs

December 31, 2020

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

December 31, 2020

Table of contents

Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
Annual Reconciliation Report	3-6
Note to the Schedule	7





Deloitte LLP 25 Corporate Park Drive Suite 301 St. Catharines ON L2S 3W2 Canada

Tel: 905-323-6000 Fax: 905-323-6001 www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council of The Regional Municipality of Niagara and the Ontario Ministry of Health

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying 2020 Annual Reconciliation Report (the "Schedule") of the Regional Municipality of Niagara (the "Region") – Public Health Department – General Programs (the "Program") for year ended December 31, 2020.

In our opinion, the accompanying Schedule of the Program as at December 31, 2020 is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting provisions in the Public Health Funding and Accountability Agreement between Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario as represented by the Ministry of Health (formerly the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care) (the "Ministry") and the Board of Health for the Niagara Region Public Health Department most recently amended effective January 1, 2020 and the "Instructions for Completion of the 2020 Year-End Settlement" dated April 15, 2021 (collectively referred to as the "Guidelines").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards ("Canadian GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule* section of our report. We are independent of the Region in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Schedule in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to the fact that the Schedule has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines. The Schedule is prepared to assist the Region in complying with the financial reporting provisions of the Guidelines. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Schedule

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the Guidelines, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Region's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Schedule.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Schedule, whether due to fraud or
 error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
 that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
 may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
 internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Region's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants Licensed Public Accountants , 2021

MINISTRY OF HEALTH

OFFICE OF CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH, PUBLIC HEALTH

2020 ANNUAL RECONCILIATION REPORT (CERTIFICATE OF SETTLEMENT)

NAME OF PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT:

Section 1: Base Funding (January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020)

- Programs Funded at 70%

- Programs Funded at 100%

Section 2: 2019 One-Time Funding Approved to March 31, 2020

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%
- One-Time Capital Projects Funded at 100%

Section 3: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to December 31, 2020

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

Section 4: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to March 31, 2021 (To be settled in 2021)

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

Section 5: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to December 31, 2021 (To be settled in 2021)

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

		Program Name per Transfer Payment Agreement	Approved Allocation	Funding Received	Expenditure at 100%	(Deduct) Offset Revenue	Net Expenditure	Eligible Expenditure	Due to / (from) Province
		Public Health Program (Mandatory)	23,576,200	23,576,200	33,855,873	(16,743)	23,687,391	23,576,200	_
	Programs Funded at	(wandatory)	-5/51 6/1-00			(25). 13)	-	-	-
	70%								-
		Sub-Total Programs Funded at 70%	23,576,200	23,576,200	33,855,873	(16,743)	23,687,391	23,576,200	-
		Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program	2,137,000	2,070,108	1,986,358	-	1,986,358	1,986,358	83,750
		MOH/AMOH Compensation Initiative (100%)	351,000	199,401	296,414		296,414	296,414	(97,013)
Section 1 Base							-	-	-
Funding (January 1,							-	-	-
2020 to December 31, 2020)							-	-	-
31, 2020)	Programs Funded at						-	-	-
	100%						-	-	-
							-	-	-
							-	-	-
							-	-	-
							-	-	-
		Sub-Total Programs Funded at 100%	2,488,000	2,269,509	2,282,772	_	2,282,772	2,282,772	(13,262)
Total Sec		unding (January 1, 2020 to				(46.742)			
	Decemi	ber 31, 2020)	26,064,200	25,845,709	36,138,645	(16,743)	25,970,163	25,858,972	(13,262)
							-	-	-
							-	-	-
	One-Time						-	-	-
	Projects / Initiatives						-	-	-
Section 2 2019 One-	Funded at 100%							-	-
Time Funding							-	-	-
Approved to March 31, 2020		Sub-Total One-Time Projects / Initiatives Funded at 100%	_	_	_	_	-		-
							-	-	-
	One-Time Capital						-	-	_
	Projects Funded at						-		_
	100%	Sub-Total One-Time Capital Projects Funded at 100%	-	_	-	-		_	-
Total Section		ne-Time Funding Approved to				-			
	iviaro	h 31, 2020	-		-				•

MINISTRY OF HEALTH

OFFICE OF CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH, PUBLIC HEALTH

2020 ANNUAL RECONCILIATION REPORT (CERTIFICATE OF SETTLEMENT)

NAME OF PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT: Niagara Region

Section 1: Base Funding (January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020)

- Programs Funded at 70%

- Programs Funded at 100%

Section 2: 2019 One-Time Funding Approved to March 31, 2020

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%
- One-Time Capital Projects Funded at 100%

Section 3: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to December 31, 2020

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

Grand Total 2020 Settlement (Section 1) +

Section 4: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to March 31, 2021 (To be settled in 2021)

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

Section 5: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to December 31, 2021 (To be settled in 2021)

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

		Program Name per Transfer Payment Agreement	Approved Allocation	Funding Received	Expenditure at 100%	(Deduct) Offset Revenue	Net Expenditure	Eligible Expenditure	Due to / (from) Province
		Temporary Pandemic Pay Initiative	267,700	267,700	31,002		31,002	31,002	236,698
		Mitigation	455,500	455,500	455,500		455,500	455,500	-
Section 3 2020 One-		Covid-19: Extraordinary Costs (100%)	3,631,000	-	1,682,094		1,682,094	1,682,094	(1,682,094)
Time Funding	One-Time Projects /						-	-	-
Approved	Initiatives Funded at						-	-	-
December 31, 2020	100%						-	-	-
31, 2020							-	-	-
		Sub-Total One-Time Projects / Initiatives Funded at 100%	4,354,200	723,200	2,168,596	-	2,168,596	2,168,596	(1,445,396)
Total Section		ne-Time Funding Approved to							
	Decem	ber 31, 2020	4,354,200	723,200	2,168,596	-	2,168,596	2,168,596	(1,445,396)
		Covid-19: School-Focused Nurses Initiative (100%)	1,340,000	1,097,667	678,059		678,059	678,059	419,608
		Covid-19: Public Health Case and Contact Management	31,700	21,684	-		-	-	21,684
		MOH/AMOH Compensation Initiative (100%)	57,300	23,359	-		-	-	23,359
Section 4 2020 One-		Mandatory Programs: Public Health Inspector Practicum	10,000	7,506	-		-	-	7,506
Time Funding	One-Time Projects /						-	-	-
Approved to March	Initiatives Funded at 100%						-	-	-
31, 2021 (To be							-	-	-
settled in 2021)							-	-	-
							-	-	-
		Sub-Total One-Time Projects / Initiatives Funded at 100%	1,439,000	1,150,216	678,059	-	678,059	678,059	472,157
	One-Time	OSDCP: Fort Erie Upgrades (100%)	75,300	66,753	35,968		35,968	35,968	30,785
	Capital Projects	OSDCP: Centre de Sante Communiautaire Upgrades	122,000	122,000	-		-	-	122,000
	Funded at	OSDCP: Niagara Falls Community Health Centre	134,500	134,500	-		-	-	134,500
	100%	Sub-Total One-Time Capital Projects Funded at 100%	331,800	323,253	35,968	-	35,968	35,968	287,285
		ne-Time Funding Approved to To be settled in 2021)	1,770,800	1,473,469	714,027	-	714,027	714,027	759,442
Section 5 2020 One-							1	-	-
Time	One-Time						-	-	-
Approved	Approved Projects / Initiatives						-	-	-
December							-	-	-
(To be settled in		Sub-Total One-Time Projects / Initiatives Funded at 100%	_	_	_	-	_	_	_
		ne-Time Funding Approved to 1 (To be settled in 2021)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

(5	ection 2) + (Section 3)	30,418,400	26,568,909	38,307,241 -	16,743	28,138,759	28,027,568 -	1,458,658
Having the au	thority to bind the Board of Health	h for the Public He	alth Unit:					
_	-							
We certify tha	at the Financials shown in the Anni	ual Reconciliation	Report and the su	pporting schedule ar	e complete and	d accurate and a	re in accordance wi	th Transfer
Payment Agre	ements and Reports filed with the	appropriate Mun	icipal Council.	•	•			
, ,	•	•• •	•					
	Date	-	·					
	Date		ignature					
		P	Medical Officer of	Health / Chief Execut	tive Officer			

MINISTRY OF HEALTH

OFFICE OF CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH, PUBLIC HEALTH

2020 ANNUAL RECONCILIATION REPORT (CERTIFICATE OF SETTLEMENT)

NAME OF PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT:

Section 1: Base Funding (January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020)

- Programs Funded at 70%

- Programs Funded at 100%

Section 2: 2019 One-Time Funding Approved to March 31, 2020

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%
- One-Time Capital Projects Funded at 100%

Section 3: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to December 31, 2020 - One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

Section 5: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to December 31, 2021 (To be settled in 2021)

Section 4: 2020 One-Time Funding Approved to March 31, 2021

(To be settled in 2021)

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

- One-Time Projects/Initiatives Funded at 100%

Program Name per Transfer Payment Agreement	Approved Allocation	Funding Received	Expenditure at 100%	(Deduct) Offset Revenue	Net Expenditure	Eligible Expenditure	Due to / (from) Province
Date		Signature Chair of the Boar	rd of Health / Aut	horized Officer			



MINISTRY OF HEALTH

OFFICE OF CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH, PUBLIC HEALTH 2020 ANNUAL RECONCILIATION REPORT (CERTIFICATE OF SETTLEMENT)

NAME OF PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT: Niagara Region

SCHEDULE 1: Schedule of Offset Revenues

Mandatory Programs (70%)	Line #	Reference	Actual \$	Ministry Use Only
Interest Income	L 1			
Universal Influenza Immunization Program clinic reimbursement	L 2		1,894	
Meningococcal C Program clinic reimbursement	L 3		5,944	
Human Papilloma Virus Program reimbursement	L 4		8,905	
Healthy Smiles Ontario (70%) - part of Mandatory Programs	L 5			
Revenues Generated from Other Government Dental Program:	L 6			
Ontario Works (OW)	L 7			
Ontario Disability Support Program (ODSP)	L 8			
Other government dental programs (please specify):	L 9			
Other (Specify):	L 10			
	L 11			
	L 12			
	L 13			
2020 Total Offset Revenues	L 14	To Summary Page Cell G18 - Offset (Revenue)	16,743	

Ontario Seniors Dental Care Program (100%)	Line #	Reference	Actual \$	Ministry Use Only
Interest Income	L 15			
Client Co-Payments	L 16			
Revenues Generated from Other Government Dental Program:	L 17			
Ontario Works (OW)	L 18			
Ontario Disability Support Program (ODSP)	L 19			
Other government dental programs (please specify):	L 20			
	L 21			
	L 22			
	L 23			
2020 Total Offset Revenues	L 24	To Summary Page Cell G23 - Offset (Revenue)	-	

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Public Health Department

General Programs Note to the Schedule December 31, 2020

1. Significant accounting policies

The report has been prepared for the Ontario Ministry of Health in accordance with the Public Health Accountability Agreement effective January 1, 2020 between the Ontario Ministry of Health and the Regional Municipality of Niagara and the Instructions for completing the 2020 Annual Report and Attestation (the "Guidelines"). The Guidelines require the report to be prepared in a manner consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Management of the Regional Municipality of Niagara has interpreted GAAP to be recognition and measurement principles in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, except that it does not provide for employee future benefits and does not capitalize and amortize tangible capital assets. Management has further interpreted that GAAP does not include the presentation principles and note disclosure required by GAAP for a complete set of financial statements.

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Revenue and expenses

Revenues are recognized in the year in which they are earned. Expenses are recorded if they are eligible for the program and incurred in the period, except for employee future benefits.

Capital assets

Tangible capital assets acquired are reported as an expenses and amortization is not recorded.

Employee future benefits

Employee future benefits are provided which will require funding in future periods. These benefits included vacation pay, sick leave, benefits under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board ("WSIB") Act, and life insurance, extended health and dental benefits for early retirees. These benefits are recorded on a cash basis.

Use of estimates

Since precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of a periodic report involves the use of estimates and approximations. These have been made using careful judgments.